APPENDIX A2 MINUTES OF SSDC REGULATION COMMITTEE 21 NOVEMBER 2017

South Somerset District Council

Minutes of a meeting of the Regulation Committee held at the Council Chamber Council Offices Brympton Way Yeovil on Tuesday 21 November 2017.

(10.00 am - 1.10 pm)

Present:

Members:

Clare Aparicio Paul Sylvia Seal
Mike Best Gina Seaton
Neil Bloomfield Angie Singleton
Tony Capozzoli Martin Wale
Sarah Dyke Nick Weeks
David Recardo Colin Winder

Also Present:

Cllr Carol Goodall Cllr Val Keitch Cllr Linda Vijeh, SCC Ward Member

Officers

Jo Boucher Democratic Services Officer
Paula Goddard Senior Legal Executive
David Norris Development Manager
Andrew Gunn Area Lead (West and North)

Mike Bellamy Highways Consultant, Development Control

Ben Sunderland Somerset County Council Highways Helen Vittery Somerset County Council Highways

1. Apologies for Absence (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Graham Oakes and Peter Gubbins.

In the absence of Councillor Peter Gubbins the Chairman Councillor Angie Singleton proposed and seconded that Councillor Mike Best be elected as Vice-Chairman for the duration of the meeting. This was agreed unanimously by members.

2. Declarations of Interest (Agenda Item 2)

Councillors Clare Aparicio Paul, Mike Best and Neil Bloomfield, all declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 4 – Land South West of Canal Way, Ilminster as they are Somerset County Councillors and the site is owned by SCC.

Councillor Angie Singleton wished to declare that her portfolio is Spatial Planning Policy but as this is a quasi-judicial procedure holds no personal interest in Item 4 – Land South West of Canal Way, Ilminster.

3. Public Question Time (Agenda Item 3)

There were no questions from members of the public.

4. Planning Application: 16/05500/OUT - Land South West of Canal Way, Ilminster. (Agenda Item 4)

Application Proposal: Land South West of Canal Way, Ilminster

The Area Lead West presented the application as detailed in the agenda and with the aid of a power point presentation showed the site and proposed plans. He also updated members on the following:

- Over 100 letters of objections had been received reiterating the issues and concerns previously raised regarding the impact the proposal would have on the highways, visual impact and overall infrastructure, landscape, drainage impact on local amenities and overall number of proposed housing.
- One further letter of objection received from Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE) objecting to scale, balance of jobs to housing and future housing requirement referring to the local plan review currently being carried out.
- Additional amended plans had been received from the applicant addressing the key issues in response to issues previously raised.
- Following the Area West Committee and the concern regarding the submitted transport assessment the SSDC Highway Consultant has now viewed this assessment and considers it to be acceptable and have no significant adverse impact on the highway network. He also considered the single point access be acceptable along with the access for emergency vehicles.

He noted that there was now no development proposed within the parish of Donyatt and explained the primary site access onto Canal Way, the proposed emergency access and the proposed drainage layout plans of the site.

He explained as this application was for outline planning permission the plans shown were indicative. He noted a number of issues identified in his report from consultees however these would be resolved at future reserved matters stage should the application be approved.

The Area Lead West referred to the key considerations and noted the application is located within the identified direction of growth. He said that the proposed number of dwellings would exceed the current Local Plan figure for the number of housing in Ilminster by approximately 50%. He confirmed there were no objections from statutory consultees including the highways authority following amendments made by the applicant and therefore they now consider the scheme acceptable.

He also noted that the Council is not currently able to demonstrate a 5 year land supply of housing and that Ilminster is classified as one of the districts larger settlements that sits in the 2nd hierarchy behind Yeovil.

He noted the proposed site is situated in flood zone 1 and that the Environment agency assessed the site and were satisfied it would not be at risk from sea or river flooding. He did however appreciate the issues of surface flooding on the northern part of the site and confirmed this would be where the relevant drainage and attenuation ponds would be located and that no housing would be built in this particular location.

The Policy Planner also explained to members the current assessment and figures regarding the balance of jobs to housing and believed that Ilminster has a high level of self-containment with employment rates higher than the national average.

The Area Lead West considered that the principle of development on this site was acceptable, in a sustainable location and the scheme would make a contribution of 35 % affordable housing plus contributions towards education, play and sport facilities. He therefore concluded that after considering all of the responses and advice, as outlined in the agenda report, he believed the proposal would not have any significant impact that demonstrably outweighs the benefits of the scheme. His proposal was therefore to approve the application subject to the conditions as set out in the agenda report.

In response to questions from members, the Area Lead West, Development Manager and Highways Officer confirmed that:

- A site visit had taken place prior to the committee where the vast majority of members had been able to walk the proposed site location.
- If member's were to approve this outline application a reserved matters application would still need to be submitted and approved with full details before full permission is granted. Reserved matters would be subject to a new application and sent out for public consultation under the normal procedure.
- Public footpaths run both within and on the boundary of the site and therefore some sections will need to be diverted. The Somerset County Council (SCC) Rights of Way Service Manager has not raised any objection to the scheme.
- Members should consider the current statutory adopted Local Plan; however the Council does not have a current five year land supply and therefore the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states where this is not the case these policies should still hold some regard and therefore members need to consider the weight of these policies when coming to a decision.
- Highways had originally raised an objection to the single access from Canal Way however following further details received from the applicant to mitigate additional measures they now consider the scheme to be acceptable along with the proposed access for emergency vehicles.
- The key priority is to deliver the Council's 5 year land supply and this site has already been one of the sites identified for achieving this.

- The applicant would need to ensure an approved drainage water scheme to safeguard the discharge for surface water. Also there was the likelihood of the Council setting up a Management Company to take on areas of open space and the management of drainage ponds etc. on this site.
- Detailed pre-application discussions are already being held regarding the proposed new school with the expectation that an application will be submitted in the new year. However the proposed school is not included as part of this application.
- SSDC would liaise with the lead Flood Authority to ensure the sustainable drainage system (SuDs) is fully inspected and maintained.
- The scheme would make a significant financial contribution for the proposed school however SCC are responsible to provide the education for this scheme and the trigger point would depend on existing capacity within the area.

As County Division Member, Councillor Linda Vijeh questioned the voting rights of a member of the Regulation Committee who had declared an interest as a Somerset County Councillor but was also a junior cabinet member. She also believed that as SCC has a financial interest in the scheme there should have been an independent highway report carried out. She referred to the lack of adequate broadband facilities in the area, the issues for local house owners to obtain sufficient insurance due to flooding problems and that SCC state that there is currently no shortage of school places in the area especially at primary school age. She also believed too much emphasis has been made the 5 year land supply as 71 other local authorities do not currently have a five year land supply.

The Senior Legal Executive advised that members who also sit on County Council committees may hold a personal interest; however this is not pecuniary to them personally and therefore can participate in the debate with an open mind.

The Highways Officer confirmed that as the Highway Authority they have a statutory duty to respond to planning application independent of any other business taking place elsewhere within SCC.

Ward member, Councillor Carol Goodall, reiterated the flooding issues and concerns within the area and the insufficient broadband facilities. She raised concern regarding previous unsatisfactory surface water drainage systems currently managed by the developer and the lack of the continued maintenance.

Ward member, Councillor Val Keitch raised concern regarding the access and other highway issues and noted the original objection from the Highway Authority. She said of the current difficulties obtaining a doctor's appointment at the surgery and the lack of employment opportunities within the town. She believed the number of housing was well above the acceptable figure already allocated and the overall scale of the development. She believed it to be a dormitory village tacked onto the side of the town which would require residents to use cars and would have a significant impact on the road network and its local facilities.

The Highways Officer explained the initial objection made based on shortcomings of the assessment and layout of the development, however the applicant had overcome these concerns and therefore now recommended approval.

The Development Manager appreciated concerns regarding the impact on local amenities such as the doctor's surgery. He believed there are many reasons why there may be a deficiency in services however much of this was not within the control of the developer.

He confirmed consultation had taken place with Clinical Care Commissioning Group who confirmed that there is no evidence to suggest there was an issue in Ilminster.

Mr A Shearman of Ilminster Town Council referred to the South Somerset supplement profile stating flooding and infrastructure could not cope and that the town overall was under served by public transport. He appreciated some development but considered this scheme to be grossly overdevelopment increasing the town by 10% and that the proposal clearly does not have support from the local community.

The Committee were then addressed by 15 members of the public who were objecting to the development. There comments included:

- The development would have a huge adverse impact on the character of the landscape and ancient ridge.
- Proposal is overbearing by its layout, density and height.
- Not enough areas of open space within the proposed scheme.
- Lack of confidence with Persimmon Homes that they will mitigate the concerns regarding existing drainage problems on the site.
- 400 houses is too many for one site in Ilminster.
- Proposal would have a severe impact on the visual amenity of the area and its historic delightful views.
- Ancient site with prehistoric and artefacts being found onsite and considered the Archaeological assessment to be inadequate.
- Road would cut through the cycle path, thus raising safety issues for users.
- Local Plan states that heritage of town is important and to retain its character.
- Impact on wildlife and the disturbance of the Great Crested Newt.
- The networks of cycleways and footpaths will be harmed.
- Local schools already overstretched with no guarantee a new school would be built
- Number of houses proposed far exceeds the local plan requirement of 496.
- Would have a significant increase on the number of cars and traffic on local roads.
- Only one entrance and exit to the proposed development will create major traffic problems on to Canal Way.
- There was no car park for the recreation ground so Canal Way was already full of parked vehicles.
- Safety concerns regarding sharing the access with the medical centre and new school.
- Will increase the flooding risk of nearby houses as downstream conditions would be exacerbated by this development.
- The site is too far for residents to walk to the town centre therefore increasing the number of cars on the local roads.
- Development would mean a huge amount of traffic traveling through the Adams Meadow housing area.
- Canal Way already used as a rat run for cars and therefore safety concerns for pedestrians.
- Inadequate access for emergency vehicles.
- Already have proposed new homes in the town and surrounding parishes therefore understood that only another 112 was required.
- Appreciate the need for housing but why should Ilminster be dumped on and suffer.
- Concerned at the impact on local amenities such as the Doctors and Dentist surgery and the car parks within the town centre.

- Could have an adverse effect on the social impact of Ilminster as could change the small town forever.
- Questioned Somerset County Council's relationship with the developer Persimmon Homes and the procurement process carried out.
- Could set a precedent with more applications coming forward should this be approved.
- Large number of housing being approved so early within the adopted Local Plan. This should be a long term benefit and therefore no need to approve all now.
- Should use existing redundant sites first -Horlicks.
- Proposed first phase of 120 houses considered more acceptable.
- Problems with the flooding of ditches with grills permanently blocked, with local residents taking to unblocking these themselves.

Mr B Smith, the agent for the applicant, noted there were no objections from the statutory consultees and therefore considered the development to be acceptable. He acknowledged the drainage concerns but confirmed the drainage system would be maintained and managed by a management company and that the provision of the two zebra crossing points would alleviate any highway concerns. He said they would be happy to work with SCC to bring the proposed school application forward as early as possible and noted the applicants financial contribution of £1.2 million allocated for the school.

In response to a members question the Area Lead West confirmed that this application is for up to 400 dwellings and that is what members have to consider at this time. He explained this could be reduced in the future but that it was for members to consider this application for up to 400 dwellings.

The Senior Legal Executive advised that should a challenge be made to SCC regarding the legal process undertaken for the option of land, this would be a separate issue and does not preclude members from determining the application at this time. The process by which Somerset County Council disposed of the land was not an issue that can be given any weight by the Local Planning Authority. Should such a challenge be made the applicant may then be stopped from developing until the dispute is determined.

During members' discussion, varying points were raised including the following:

- 400 homes significantly higher than the currently approved figure.
- Prospect of a soulless development.
- Appreciate the need for development but this scheme would have a severe visual impact on the local countryside.
- We have responsibility to build new homes especially with the current number of homeless and young people trying to buy first homes.
- Proposed development is located within the proposed direction growth.
- Ilminster is an excellent vibrant town with high employment opportunities.
- Appreciate the issues raised however believe the conditions imposed would mitigate many of these concerns.
- Should look to adhere to the current Local Plan and its policies and therefore the number of proposed dwellings far exceeds the proposed number for this area.
- Would have preferred a lower number of houses and unfortunate this application cannot be approved with a reduced number of housing.
- Safety concerns regarding the proposed emergency access at Adams Meadow.
- One access is not enough to serve this development look to relocate a second access further along Canal Way.

- Sought assurance that the proposed drainage scheme would be maintained and managed appropriately by a management company.
- Sought assurance that the proposed buffer zone be significantly wide and exceeds the standard width.
- Should take account of other developments within the district and learn from these problems including flooding and surface water run-off and traffic safety issues.
- Safety concerns regarding sharing the access with the medical centre and new school with all persons using the same access.
- Appreciate the concerns raised, however all statutory consultees consider the proposal to be acceptable and therefore need to adhere to their professional response and advice.
- Mindful of planning appeal costs nonetheless should not be fearful of such due to the proposal significantly exceeding the number of proposed dwellings than the currently approved figure in the Local Plan.
- Noted the objection from the Area West Committee and the local Parish Council.
- Appreciate this was an outline planning permission and that should the application be approved detailed matters including the layout of the scheme will need to be decided at reserve matters application stage.
- Localism the need to consider and take account of the views of the local people.

In response to members, the Development Manager advised that:

- The adopted Local Plan was there to facilitate growth and that Canal Way had been identified as a suitable location for the direction of growth.
- Confirmed a review of the currently adopted Local Plan was being undertaken, however need to be guided by the Local Plan and planning policies at the present time
- Confirmed all statutory consultees had been consulted and concluded that having taken into consideration all of the responses and advice, as outlined in the agenda report, believed the proposal would not have any significant impact that demonstrably outweighs the benefits of the scheme.

During a short debate, members discussed and suggested reasons for refusal. These included:

- Harmful to the landscape and detrimental to the local plan.
- Overdevelopment and density of the site.

Following a short adjournment to finalise and agree the full wording of the reasons for refusal, the Development Manager read out two proposed reasons for refusal as follows:

- 1. The proposed development would by reason of its scale have an adverse impact upon the landscape of the area contrary to the relevant policy of the Local Plan.
- 2. The proposed development by reason of its scale would have an adverse impact upon the settlement hierarchy contained in the Local plan and would therefore be contrary to the relevant policies.

This was then proposed and subsequently seconded that planning permission be refused, contrary to the officer's recommendation for the reasons as read out by the Development Control Manager.

On being put to the vote this was taken as 5 votes in favour, 5 against and 1 abstention. The Chairman then provided her casting vote against refusal of the application and therefore this proposal was lost.

It was then proposed and subsequently seconded that permission be granted as per the officer's recommendation as set out in the agenda report. On being put to the vote this was carried by 6 votes in favour, 5 against and 0 abstentions.

RESOLVED:

That application **16/05500/OUT** be approved for the following reason:

01. It is considered that the proposed scheme would provide a sustainable development with good access to a range of services and facilities. It will make an important contribution towards meeting the district's housing needs, including 35% affordable housing, it would provide a safe means of vehicular and pedestrian access, would not adversely harm residential amenity, ecology or the local landscape and would satisfactorily mitigate for surface and foul water drainage. The proposal is in accord with PMT3, SD1, SS1, SS5, SS6, HG3, HG5, TA4, TA5, TA6, HW1, EQ1, EQ2 and EQ4 of the adopted South Somerset Local Plan, the Core Planning Principles and Chapters 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

- 01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.
 - Reason: To accord with the provisions of Article 4 (Article 5) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015.
- O2. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
 - Reason: As required by Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
- 03. For each phase of development, approval of the details of the layout, scale, external appearance, internal floor levels of the building(s), the means of access thereto and residential boundary treatments, shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority before any development is commenced.
 - Reason: To accord with the provisions of Article 4 (Article 5) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015.
- 04. The proposed estate roads, footways, footpaths, tactile paving, cycleways, bus stops/bus lay-bys, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, drains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, carriageway gradients, drive gradients, car, motorcycle and cycle parking, and street furniture shall be constructed and laid out in accordance with details to be approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing

before their construction begins. For this purpose, plans and sections, indicating as appropriate, the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials and method of construction shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety to accord with Policy TA5 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

05. The proposed roads, including footpaths and turning spaces where applicable, shall be constructed in such a manner as to ensure that each dwelling before it is occupied shall be served by a properly consolidated and surfaced footpath and carriageway to at least base course level between the dwelling and existing highway.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety to accord with Policy TA5 of the South Somerset Local plan.

06. No work shall commence on the development site until works to the roundabout on Canal Way, changes to the access to the doctors surgeries and first part of the spine road, providing access to the school (as shown generally in accordance with drawing number: 28326/5503/001) have been carried out in accordance with a design and specification to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety to accord with Policy TA5 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

07. There shall be no commencement of development until details of the new zebra crossings have been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA; with no occupation of the school or 25 dwellings (whichever is the soonest) until the works have been carried out in accordance with the approved design and specification.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety to accord with Policy TA5 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

08. Details of the emergency access (as shown generally in accordance with drawing number: 28326/5503/002) shall be submitted to and approved in writing, prior to the commencement of any dwelling within that phase of development. The emergency access shall then be fully constructed in accordance with the approved design and specification.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety to accord with Policy TA5 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

09. Before any work is commenced a programme showing the phasing of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the development shall not proceed other than in accordance with the approved programme.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety to accord with Policy TA5 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

10. In the interests of sustainable development none of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied until a network of cycleway and footpath connections has been constructed within the development site in accordance with a scheme to be

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the approved phasing plan.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to promote sustainable modes of travel to accord with Policy TA5 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

11. No work shall commence on the development site until an appropriate right of discharge for surface water has been obtained before being submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. A drainage scheme for the site showing details of gullies, connections, soakaways and means of attenuation on site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety to accord with Policy TA5 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

12. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a Construction Traffic Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (in consultation with Somerset County Council). The plan shall include construction vehicle movements, construction operation hours, construction vehicular routes to and from site, construction delivery hours, expected number of construction vehicles per day, car parking for contractors, specific measures to be adopted to mitigate construction impacts in pursuance of the Environmental Code of Construction Practice and a scheme to encourage the use of public transport amongst contractors. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved Construction Traffic Management Plan.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to mimimise the impact of construction activities on local residents to accord with Policy TA5 and EQ2 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

13. The dwellings hereby permitted shall not be occupied until parking spaces in accordance with SCC parking strategy has been provided in a position approved by the Local Planning Authority. The said spaces and access thereto shall be properly consolidated and surfaced, and shall thereafter be kept clear of obstruction at all times and not used other than for the parking of vehicles or for the purpose of access.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety to accord with Polciy TA5 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

14. For each phase of the development, no development hereby permitted shall be commenced until particulars of the materials (including the provision of samples where appropriate) to be used for external walls, roofs and rainwater goods have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the area to accord with Policy EQ2 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

15. In this condition 'retained tree' means an existing tree which is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and paragraphs a) and b) below shall have effect until the expiration of (IN) from the date of occupation of the building for its permitted use.

- a) No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Any topping or lopping approved shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 3998 (Tree Work).
- b) If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at the same place and that tree shall be of such size and species, and shall be planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- c) The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought onto the site for the purposes of the development, and shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect trees during construction of the development.

16. In the event that any signs of pollution such as poor plant growth, odour, staining of the soil, unusual colouration or soil conditions, or remains from the past industrial use, are found in the soil at any time when carrying out the approved development it must be reported in writing within 14 days to the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The LPA will then consider if the findings have any impact upon the development and development must be halted on that part of the site. If the LPA considers it necessary then an assessment of the site must be undertaken in accordance with BS10175. Where remediation is deemed necessary by the LPA a remediation scheme must be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA and then implemented in accordance with the submitted details.

Reason: To protect the health of future occupiers of the site from any possible effects of contaminated land, in accordance with the NPPF.

- 17. The development shall not be commenced until a foul water drainage strategy is submitted and approved in writing by the local Planning Authority in consultation with Wessex Water acting as the sewerage undertaker
 - a drainage scheme shall include appropriate arrangements for the agreed points of connection and the capacity improvements required to serve the proposed development phasing
 - the drainage scheme shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and to a timetable agreed with the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development is adequately drained to accord with ther NPPF.

18. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

Drawing numbers: 2016 - ILLM P2, 28326/5503/001/A and 28326/5503/002.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

19. No development shall be commenced until details of the surface water drainage scheme based on sustainable drainage principles together with a programme of implementation and maintenance for the lifetime of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage strategy shall ensure that surface water runoff post development is attenuated on site and discharged at a rate and volume no greater than greenfield runoff rates and volumes. Such works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

These details shall include: -

- Details of phasing (where appropriate) and information of maintenance of drainage systems during construction of this and any other subsequent phases.
- Information about the design storm period and intensity, discharge rates and volumes (both pre and post development), temporary storage facilities, means of access for maintenance (6 metres minimum), the methods employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters.
- Any works required off site to ensure adequate discharge of surface water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment of existing culverts and headwalls or removal of unused culverts where relevant).
- Flood water exceedance routes both on and off site, note, no part of the site must be allowed to flood during any storm up to and including the 1 in 30 event, flooding during storm events in excess of this including the 1 in 100yr (plus 40% allowance for climate change) must be controlled within the designed exceedance routes demonstrated to prevent flooding or damage to properties.
- A management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which shall include the arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management company or maintenance by a Residents' Management Company and / or any other arrangements to secure the operation and maintenance to an approved standard and working condition throughout the lifetime of the development

Reason: To ensure that the development is served by a satisfactory system of surface water drainage and that the approved system is retained, managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details throughout the lifetime of the development, in accordance with paragraph 17 and sections 10 and 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Paragraph 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework and the Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2015).

- 20. The first reserved matters application to be submitted shall include the following details:
 - a) a design code for the development;
 - b) a detailed masterplan for the whole site, including outline landscape treatment, and:
 - c) a public space proposal, inclusive of access detail, and site management prescriptions.
 - d) compensation habitat for the loss of dormice habitat and great crested newt.
 - e) an appropriate dormouse habitat corridor running east -west along the southern boundary

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory design and layout is achieved and appropriate ecological mitigation is secured to accord with Polices EQ2 and EQ4 of the South Somerset Local Plan.

Informatives:

- 01. In regard to condition no 20, the applicant is strongly advised to enter into discussions with the Local Planning Authority prior to the submission of any reserved matters application.
- 02. In regard to the highway works, the applicant is advised to contact the Highway Authority as soon as practicable in order that the appropriate legal agreement can be completed prior to the commencement of highway works.
- 03. Please be advised that subsequent full or reserved matters approval by South Somerset District Council will attract a liability payment under the Community Infrastructure Levy. CIL is a mandatory financial charge on development and you will be notified of the amount of CIL being charged on this development in a CIL Liability Notice.

You are required to complete and return Form 1 Assumption of Liability as soon as possible and to avoid additional financial penalties it is important that you notify us of the date you plan to commence development before any work takes place Please complete and return Form 6 Commencement Notice. You are advised to visit our website for further details https://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/cil or email cil@southsomerset.gov.uk

(voting: 6 in favour, 5 against, 0 abstentions)

5. Date of Next Meeting (Agenda Item 5)

The next scheduled meeting of the Regulation Committee is on Tuesday 19th December 2017 at 10.00am. However this meeting will only take place if there is business to conduct.

Chairman	
Chairman	
Date	